
THE HOUSING AUTHORITY 
 OF THE CITY OF AUSTIN

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
Chairperson - Carl S. Richie, Jr. 

Charles Bailey
Mary Apostolou

Tyra Duncan-Hall
Edwina Carrington

Michael G. Gerber, President & CEO

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
Annual Meeting

Thursday, March 14, 2019
10:30 AM

HACA Central Offices
1124 S. IH 35 Austin, TX

Austin, TX



PUBLIC NOTICE OF A MEETING
TAKE NOTICE OF A BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

ANNUAL BOARD MEETING
OF THE HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF AUSTIN

TO BE HELD AT
HACA Central Offices

1124 S. IH 35 Austin, TX
Austin, TX

(512.477.4488)

Thursday, March 14, 2019
10:30 AM

REVISED
CALL TO ORDER, ROLL CALL

CERTIFICATION OF QUORUM

Program Review Committee

HACA's Program Review Committee will meet from 10:30 AM - 12 Noon. This Committee's objective is 
to provide the Board with an opportunity to receive written and oral reports from staff, to review program 
operations and outcomes, to review agency budgets, and to ensure that programs are meeting HACA's 
strategic goals. The Program Committee consists of all members of HACA's Board of Commissioners. No 
votes on any matter shall be taken during Program Review Committee Meetings.

1. Rodolfo Rodriguez, HACA Health and Wellness Strategic Catalyst, and Sylvia Blanco, COO,
will report on findings from HACA’s recent Community Health Needs Assessment, update on
launch of Bringing Health Home program, and other health and wellness initiatives on the
horizon.

2. Martha Ross, CFO, and Finance Staff will brief the Committee on the proposed FY2019-2020
Budget.

Citizens Communication (Note: There will be a three-minute time limitation)

Citywide Advisory Board Update

CONSENT AGENDA

Items on the Consent Agenda may be removed at the request of any Commissioner and considered at another
appropriate time on this agenda.  Placement on the Consent Agenda does not limit the possibility of any
presentation, discussion, or action at this meeting.  Under no circumstances does the Consent Agenda alter
any requirements under Chapter 551 of the Texas Government Code, Texas Open Meetings Act.

CONSENT ITEMS

1. Presentation, Discussion, and Possible Action regarding the Approval of the Board Minutes
Summary for the Board Meeting held on February 21, 2019

2. Presentation, Discussion, and Possible Action regarding Resolution No. 02592: Approval to
ratify all actions taken by the Board of Commissioners during FYE 2019, in order to resolve any



irregularities which may have occurred regarding a quorum or vote by the Commissioners as
reflected within the approved minutes and resolution

ACTION ITEMS

3. Update on HACA's Rental Assistance Demonstration Program
4. Presentation, Discussion, and Possible Action on Resolution No. 02591: Resolution authorizing

the Housing Authority of the City of Austin to take the following actions with regard to The
Oaks (the “Development”) in Austin, Texas: (A) acquire the site of the Development; (B) lease
the development site to the owner of the Development; and (C) such other actions necessary or
convenient to carry out this Resolution.

5. Presentation, Discussion, and Possible Action regarding the Approval of Resolution No. 02590;
Approving the Operating Budgets for the Fiscal Year April 1, 2019 to March 31, 2020

EXECUTIVE SESSION

The Board may go into Executive Session (close its meeting to the public) Pursuant to:

a. 551.071, Texas Gov't Code, consultations with Attorney regarding legal advice, pending or
contemplated litigation; or a settlement offer;

b. 551.072, Texas Gov't Code, discussion about the purchase, exchange, lease or value of real
property;

c. 551.074, Texas Gov't Code, discuss the appointment, employment, evaluation, reassignment,
duties, discipline, or dismissal of a public officer or employee; or to hear a complaint or charge
against an officer or employee.

d. 551.087, Texas Gov't Code, discuss certain economic development negotiations.

OPEN SESSION

If there is an Executive Session, the Board will return to Open Session for discussion,
consideration and possible action of matters discussed in Executive Session.

REPORTS

The Board accepts the following reports:
President's Report
Other Staff Reports
Commissioners' Reports/Questions to the Department Staff

• President's Report

• Other Staff Reports

• Commissioners' Reports/Questions to the Department Staff

ADJOURNMENT

"Pursuant to 30.06, Penal Code, (trespass by holder of license with a concealed handgun), a person licensed under Subchapter H, Chapter 411,
Government Code (handgun licensing law), may not attend this meeting with a concealed handgun."

"Pursuant to 30.07, Penal Code (trespass by holder of license with an openly carried handgun), a person licensed under Subchapter H, Chapter 411,
Government Code (handgun licensing law), may not attend this meeting with a handgun that is carried openly."

"En virtud del 30.06, Codigo Penal, (traspaso titular de licencia con una pistola), una persona bajo el subcapitulo H, capitulo 411, codigo de gobierno (Ley
de licencia de arma or pistola), no se permiten en este reunion con una arma o pistola.



"En virtud de 30.07, Codigo Penal (prevaricacion por titular de la licencia con un arma o pistola abiertamente llevado), una persona bajo el subcapitulo H,
capitulo 411, codigo de gobierno (Ley de licencia de arma o pistola), no se permiten en esta reunion con un arma o pistola que lleva abiertamente.

*The Housing Authority of the City of Austin (HACA) Board of Commissioners reserves the right to discuss and consider items out of order on the
agenda on an as needed basis.

The Housing Authority of the City of Austin is committed to compliance with the Americans with Disability Act. Reasonable modifications and equal
access to the communications will be provided upon request. Meeting locations are planned with wheelchair access. If requiring Sign Language Interpreters
or alternative formats, please give notice at least 2 days (48 hours) before the meeting date. Please call Judy Paciocco or Nidia Hiroms at HACA at
512.477.4488, for additional information; TTY users route through Relay Texas at 711. For more information on HACA, please contact Nidia Hiroms at
512.477.4488 x 2104.



PROGRAM REVIEW COMMITTEE

ITEM NO. 1.

MEETING DATE: March 14, 2019

Rodolfo Rodriguez, HACA Health and Wellness Strategic Catalyst, and Sylvia Blanco, COO, will 
report on findings from HACA’s recent Community Health Needs Assessment, provide an update on 
the launch of the Bringing Health Home program, and discuss other health and wellness initiatives on the 
horizon.

ITEM NO.2 - Page 1 of 1



PROGRAM REVIEW COMMITTEE

ITEM NO. 2.

MEETING DATE: March 14, 2019

Martha Ross, CFO, and Finance Staff will brief the Committee on the proposed FY2019-2020 Budget.

ITEM NO.3 - Page 1 of 1



HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF AUSTIN

BOARD ACTION REQUEST

EXECUTIVE
ITEM NO. 1.

MEETING DATE: March 14, 2019

STAFF CONTACT: Michael Gerber, President & CEO

ITEM TITLE: Presentation, Discussion, and Possible Action regarding the Approval of the Board
Minutes Summary for the Board Meeting held on February 21, 2019

BUDGETED ITEM: N/A

TOTAL COST: N/A

ACTION

The Board is being asked to review and approve the Board Minutes Summary for the Board Meeting held on
February 21, 2019.

ATTACHMENTS:

20190221 HACA Minutes Summary

ITEM NO.4 - Page 1 of 6



February 21, 2019 
Page 1 of 5

 

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF AUSTIN 
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

FEBRUARY 21, 2019 

SUMMARY OF MINUTES 

THE HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF AUSTIN (HACA) BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS PUBLIC MEETING 
NOTICE WAS POSTED FOR 12:00 NOON ON THURSDAY, FEBRUARY 21, 2019, AND WAS HELD AT THE HACA 
CENTRAL OFFICE, 1124 S. IH 35, AUSTIN, TX 

CALL TO ORDER, ROLL CALL, CERTIFICATION OF QUORUM 
The Board of Commissioners Regular Board Meeting of the Housing Authority of the City of Austin, of February 21, 2019, was 
called to order by Carl S. Richie, Jr., HACA Chairperson, at 12:18 pm. The meeting was held at the HACA Central Office, 1124 
S. IH 35, Austin, TX

Roll call certified a quorum was present. 
MEMBERS PRESENT: MEMBER(S) ABSENT: 
Carl S. Richie, Jr., Chairperson 
Charles Bailey, Vice Chairperson 
Tyra Duncan-Hall, 2nd Vice Chairperson 
Edwina Carrington, Commissioner 
Mary Apostolou, Commissioner   

STAFF PRESENT: 
Ann Gass, Andrea Galloway, Catherine Crago, Frank Garcia, Gloria Morgan, Kelly Crawford, Ken Bodden, Lisa Garcia, Martha 
Ross, Michael Cummings, Michael Gerber, Michael Roth, Nora Morales, Pilar Sanchez, Ron Kowal, Suzanne Schwertner, and 
Sylvia Blanco 

ALSO IN ATTENDANCE: 
Wilson Stoker, Cokinos, Bosien & Young 

CITIZENS COMMUNICATION – NONE. 

CITYWIDE ADVISORY BOARD (CWAB) -  
•Felicia Vargas, CWAB President, reported that the February CWAB Meeting was held on February 12, 2019 at the Lakeside
Apartments. •Domonica Foster, Austin Area Urban League (AAUL) stated that the Pathways to Career computer classes have
started at Booker T. Washington, and classes at AAUL will begin in April. •Cynthia Miller, Capital Metro, was hired to find
better transportation for Austin residents. •Sharon Harris with Family Eldercare was introduced as their Floating Service
Coordinator. • Michael Roth, HACA Director of Housing Operations and Policy provided RAD updates. Michael also
reminded everyone that residents must work with property staff to address bed bug issues. •Michael Gerber, HACA President
& CEO reported that he met with the HACA Board of Commissioners to discuss a strategic plan for HACA. A Program Review
Committee comprised of HACA Commissioners is being formed to ensure HACA has the right programs and services in place
for residents. •AROW Reports were provided by Irene of North Loop, Floyd of Northgate and Anna Davis from Bouldin Oaks.
•Leilani Lim–Villegas, HACA Director of Community Affairs, reported that there is a live calendar of resident council and
CWAB meetings on the HACA website. •Barbara Jackson, HACA Jobs Plus Director, stated that residents will receive $50 for
completing the financial literacy classes and reported that Applications are available for the Summer Youth Program and the
deadline to apply is March 12th. •Joshua Banks, HACA IDADS Program Coordinator stated that the next IDads class will
begin on March 12th. •Andrea Smith, HACA FSS Coordinator made everyone aware of an individual named Shonnon McNeil,
who is handing out fraudulent business cards and taking advantage of seniors and the disabled. •Tiffany Middleton, HACA
Tenant Protection Project Manager asked residents to follow procedures for filing a complaint before they contact her.
•Catherine Crago, HACA Strategic Initiatives and Resource Development Manager spoke about the “Obama” subsidized
phones, internet and new computer labs.

Employee of the Quarter -  Tamika Gilmore, HACA Housing Manager was awarded Employee of the Quarter. Tamika 
received several nominations from her peers, who say that Tamika is a total team player who is highly respected and liked by 
all.  Tamika’s co-workers believe that Tamika is the hardest working property manager and is always ready to help her fellow 
co-workers and is well deserving of this award. 

ITEM NO.4 - Page 2 of 6Attachment 1



February 21, 2019 
Page 2 of 5 

 

CONSENT AGENDA 
APPROVAL OF THE FOLLOWING ITEMS PRESENTED IN THE BOARD MATERIALS: 
ITEM 1:   Presentation, Discussion, and Possible Action regarding the Approval of the Board Minutes Summary for 

the Board Meeting held on December 20, 2018 
Commissioner Carrington moved to Approve the Board Minutes Summary for the Board Meeting held on December 20, 2018 
as presented. Commissioner Apostolou seconded the motion. The motion Passed (5-Ayes and 0-Nays). 
 
ITEM 2:   Presentation, Discussion, and Possible Action regarding approval of the Board Meeting and Strategic 

Planning and Work Session Minutes Summary for the January 30, 2018 meeting 
Commissioner Carrington moved to Approve the Board Meeting and Strategic Planning and Work Session Minutes Summary 
for the January 30, 2018 meeting. Commissioner Apostolou seconded the motion. The motion Passed (5-Ayes and 0-Nays). 
 
Chairperson Richie left the meeting at 12:24 pm.  Vice-Chairperson Bailey presided over the meeting. 
 
ACTION ITEMS 
APPROVAL OF THE FOLLOWING ITEMS PRESENTED IN THE BOARD MATERIALS 
ITEM 3:   Presentation, Discussion, and Possible Action regarding Resolution No. 02583: Approval of renewal of the 

Contract for Employee Medical Insurance 
As part of its compensation package, the Housing Authority of the City of Austin currently offers its regular full-time employees 
medical coverage through United Healthcare's Exclusive Provider Organization (EPO) plan.  This is the third year renewal of a 
four (4) year contract with United Healthcare. 
 
On November 16, 2018, HACA staff met with the Gallagher Group, HACA's insurance brokers, to discuss the upcoming 
insurance renewal for the 2019-2020 fiscal year.  United Healthcare initially proposed an 8% premium rate increase for HACA's 
medical coverage. Through negotiations between United Healthcare and the Gallagher Group, United agreed to provide HACA 
with a rate pass for the 2019-2020 fiscal year based on HACA's claims experience. This will result in HACA not receiving an 
increase in premiums this year.  In addition, for the fiscal year 2018-19, HACA increased the surcharge to employees who 
choose to continue to use tobacco products to $50 per month. HACA will continue to impose this surcharge and will consider 
increasing the monthly amount to $75.  Employees may participate in and complete a tobacco cessation program if they wish to 
avoid the surcharge.   
2nd Vice-Chairperson Duncan-Hall moved to Approve Resolution No. 02583: Approval of the renewal of the Contract for 
Employee Medical Insurance with United Healthcare to provide health insurance coverage for all regular full-time employees of 
the Housing Authority of the City of Austin, the Southwest Housing Compliance Corporation, Blueprint Consulting, Austin 
Affordable Housing Corporation and Austin Pathways. Commissioner Carrington seconded the motion. The motion Passed 
(4-Ayes and 0-Nays). 
 
ITEM 4:   Presentation, Discussion, and Possible Action regarding Resolution No. 02584: Approval of the renewal of 

the Contract for Employee Dental Insurance 
As part of its compensation package, the Housing Authority of the City of Austin currently provides its employees with two (2) 
options for dental coverage through United Healthcare: a Dental Maintenance Organization (DHMO) and Preferred Provider 
Plan (PPO), a buy-up plan.  This is HACA's third year renewal under the current four (4) year contract with United Healthcare. 
 
On November 16, 2018, HACA staff met with the Gallagher Group, HACA's insurance brokers, regarding the renewal rates 
from United Healthcare for HACA's dental insurance coverage.  HACA was informed there would be no increase to the DHMO 
plan for the 2019-2020 plan year. 
 
In order to continue to provide employees with the best available and affordable dental coverage, and based on no increase to 
the renewal rate provided by United Healthcare for the DHMO and a 2% renewal rate increase for the PPO, staff recommends 
that United Healthcare be awarded the renewal contract to provide employee dental insurance coverage for the 2019-2020 fiscal 
year.  
Chairperson Richie returned to the meeting during this discussion at 12:35 pm. Vice-Chairperson Bailey presiding over this 
Action Item. 
 
Commissioner Carrington moved to Approve Resolution No. 02584: Approval of the renewal of the Contract for Employee 
Dental Insurance with United Healthcare to provide dental insurance coverage for all regular full-time employees of the Housing 
Authority of the City of Austin, Southwest Housing Compliance Corporation, Blueprint Housing Solutions, Austin Affordable 
Housing Corporation and Austin Pathways.  Chairperson Richie seconded the motion. The motion Passed (5-Ayes and 0-
Nays). 
 
ITEM 5:   Presentation, Discussion and Possible Action regarding Resolution No. 02585: Approval of the revised 

Housing Choice Voucher Program Utility Allowance Schedules 
Per 24 CFR 982.517, HUD regulations require housing authorities to review utility allowance schedules annually and adjust the 
schedules if there has been a 10% or more rate change per category since the last revision.   

ITEM NO.4 - Page 3 of 6Attachment 1



February 21, 2019 
Page 3 of 5

 

Residential Utility Allowances, a Division of the Nelrod Company, completed the annual utility allowance review for HACA's 
Housing Choice Voucher Program. A comparison was made of the utility rates utilized in the previous study compared to the 
current utility rates. The review indicated that overall rates and charges changed more than 10%, therefore the current utility 
allowance schedules must be adjusted. 

Staff recommends adjusting the utility allowance rates based on current utility rates. The revised utility allowance schedules will 
be effective June 1, 2019 for participants who are issued new vouchers and for annual re-examinations. 
2nd Vice-Chairperson Duncan-Hall moved to Approve Resolution No. 02585: Approval of the revised Housing Choice 
Voucher Program Utility Allowance Schedules. Commissioner Carrington seconded the motion. The motion Passed (5-Ayes 
and 0-Nays). 

ITEM 6:  Presentation, Discussion and Possible Action Regarding Resolution No. 02588: Approval of Revisions to 
the Housing Choice Voucher Administrative Plan 

The Housing Choice Voucher (HCV) Administrative Plan is required by HUD and its purpose is to establish policies for 
carrying out the programs in a manner consistent with HUD requirements, as well as, local goals and objectives contained in 
Hacks agency plan.  The Administrative Plan is a supporting document to HACA's agency plan, and is available for public 
review as required by CFR 24 Part 903. The HACA Board of Commissioners must approve the original policy and any 
subsequent changes to comply with HUD regulations. 

The proposed changes to the HCV Administrative Plan incorporates updates to the Project-based Voucher (PBV) selection 
criteria.  

HACA will project-base 25 HUD-VASH vouchers and 25 Housing Choice Vouchers at the Terrace at Oak Springs (previously 
Housing First at Oak Springs), located at 3000 Oak Springs Drive, Austin TX 78702. HACA will also project-base 25 HUD-
VASH vouchers at the Elysium Grand, located at 3300 Oak Creek Drive, Austin TX 78727. Applicants who occupy units with 
PBV assistance must be selected from the PHA’s waiting list. The PHA may establish selection criteria or preferences for 
occupancy of particular PBV units, and may place families referred by the PBV owner on its PBV waiting list. HACA will use 
separate waiting lists for PBV units in individual projects. Revisions to the Housing Choice Voucher (HCV) Administrative 
Plan were required for Chapter 3 and Chapter 17 of the current HCV Administrative Plan to described the selection criteria and 
preferences for occupancy of  PBV units. 

HACA posted the revisions for public comment beginning Friday, January 18, 2019 through Monday, February 18, 2019. 
HACA sent the proposed changes to Texas Rio Grande Legal Aid, the Austin Tenants' Council and the Ending Homeless 
Chronic Homelessness Coalition (ECHO).  No comments were received. 
Commissioner Apostolou moved to Approve Resolution No. 02588: Approval of Revisions to the Housing Choice Voucher 
Administrative Plan.  Commissioner Carrington seconded the motion. The motion Passed (5-Ayes and 0-Nays). 

ITEM 7:   Update on HACA's Rental Assistance Demonstration Program (RAD) 
Ann Gass, HACA Director of Strategic Housing Initiatives, provided an update to the Board regarding progress with HACA's 
Rental Assistance Demonstration Program, ongoing construction and rehabilitation of units in HACA's public housing portfolio, 
and implications for residents and the broader community. 

ITEM 8:  Presentation, Discussion, and Possible Action regarding Resolution No. 02586: Approving the Extension 
and Amendment of a Contract for Independent Auditing Service 

The U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development requires public housing agencies that expend more than $750,000 per 
year in non-profit entities and more than $500,000 per year in profit entities from Federal Awards, to have an A-133 Single 
Audit performed by independent auditors. 

Resolution 2383 was approved by the HACA Board in February 2015.  This was for the firm of Berman, Hopkins, Wright and 
LaHam, CPAs and Associates, LLP to provide independent annual auditing services for HACA for two years (2015 and 2016), 
with an option to renew for two additional years (2017 and 2018).  

The requested amendments are (1) to extend the contract for two additional years (2019 and 2020), (2) clarify that audit services 
now include HACA consolidated as well as AAHC, SHCC, Blueprint, Austin Pathways, conversion to PBRA-RAD, other 
required single audits per HUD's requirements, and consulting, and (3) increase the contract approval from $70,000/year for just 
the HACA audit, to a not to exceed amount of$185,000/year for all audits and work.    HACA will confirm that any additional 
single audits are required per HUD's requirements.    

Due to HACA converting from the Section 9 Low Income Housing program to the Section 8 PBRA-RAD program from 2016 to 
2020, that has introduced different accounting, reporting, compliance and new complexity.  Due to conversion to PBRA RAD 
projected through 2020 and due to recent tenured staff changes (CFO in 2017 and Director of Finance in 2019), staff 
recommends continuity with the firm of Berman, Hopkins, Wright and LaHam, CPAs and Associates, LP, for the next two 
years.  There is no rule for the maximum number of years an audit firm may serve, however, rotations of approximately every 
five years are cited as a best practice.  Due to HACA’s unique set of circumstances as mentioned above, staff recommends a 

ITEM NO.4 - Page 4 of 6Attachment 1



February 21, 2019 
Page 4 of 5

 

two-year contract extension be awarded for all HACA audits, not to exceed $185,000 per year. 
Vice-Chairperson Bailey moved to Approve Resolution No. 02586: Approving the Extension and Amendment of a Contract 
for Independent Auditing Service.  Chairperson Richie amended the motion to approve the 2 year contract extension to 
Berman, Hopkins, Wright and LaHam, CPAs and Associates, and added the amendment to include that the contract would be 
placed out for bid in 2 years,  Vice-Chairperson Bailey accepted the amendment. Vice-Chairperson Bailey seconded the 
motion. The motion Passed (5-Ayes and 0-Nays). 

ITEM 9:   Presentation, Discussion, and Possible Action on Resolution No. 02587: Resolution authorizing the Housing 
Authority of the City of Austin to take the following actions with regard to the Signature at Franklin Park 
(the “Development”) in Austin, Texas: (A) acquire the site of the Development; (B) lease the development 
site to the owner of the Development; and (C) such other actions necessary or convenient to carry out this 
Resolution. 

Austin Affordable Housing Corporation (AAHC) was presented with an opportunity to partner with Dominium on Signature at 
Franklin Park located at 4509 E St. Elmo Road, Austin, TX 78744. The property, built in 2004, consists of 163 family apartment 
units. There is a Land Use Restriction Agreement (LURA) on the property restricting units to the following rent/income 
restrictions:  26 units at 30% AMI, 52 units at 40% AMI, 52 units at 50% AMI and 33 units at market rate. 

Signature on Franklin Park was built by Southwest Housing as a 9% tax credit development and currently has many unit and 
common area amenities. Amenities include fully equipped kitchens with dishwashers and disposals, built-in microwaves, private 
patio or balcony and washer and dryer connections. Common areas include a pool, playground, clubroom, business center, 
laundry facilities and a supportive services room.  

The property has excellent transportation access with a bus stop by the site, and easy access to IH 35 and the airport. 

This property was subsequently sold to the Pinnacle Group. The property was purchased from the Pinnacle Group by Dominium 
in November of 2018 and the 15-year tax credit period on this property expired in January of 2019. 

The Dominium Group has asked AAHC to participate in the existing ownership structure, as the new General Partner (GP) of 
this asset; it is the intention of the partnership to re-syndicate this property using 4% tax credits with bonds to be able to make 
necessary upgrades and improvements to the development later this year.  The property will be managed by the management 
arm of the Dominium Group. 

In order to facilitate this transaction, Austin Affordable Housing Corporation is requesting a Resolution from the Housing 
Authority of the City of Austin to acquire the land, lease the development site to the owner of the development, and such actions 
necessary or convenient to carry out this Resolution. 
Commissioner Apostolou moved to Approve Resolution No. 02587: Resolution authorizing the Housing Authority of the City 
of Austin to take the following actions with regard to the Signature at Franklin Park (the “Development”) in Austin, Texas: (A) 
acquire the site of the Development; (B) lease the development site to the owner of the Development; and (C) such other actions 
necessary or convenient to carry out this Resolution. Commissioner Carrington seconded the motion. The motion Passed (5-
Ayes and 0-Nays). 

ITEM 10:   Presentation, Discussion, and Possible Action regarding Resolution No. 02589: Authorizing the creation of 
a Program Review Committee and the Appointment of Members 

As HACA’s programs and operations grow more complex, additional time for HACA Commissioners to review monthly reports 
and to receive oral reports and analysis from HACA staff regarding program operations, strategic objectives, and goals is 
necessary.  In an effort to provide additional tine and information to the Commissioners prior to the Board Meetings, a Program 
Review Committee to provide additional oversight of complex programs and operations will be formed.  HACA staff is 
recommending to the Board of Commissioners that at each HACA Board of Commissioners meeting, a Program Review 
Committee meet for approximately an hour and 15 minutes (generally to be held from 10:30 am to 11:45 am) on Board Meeting 
dates to review reports from staff on various aspects of HACA’s operations, to review performance objectives and goals, to 
evaluate compliance with HUD and other requirements, and to ensure adherence to HACA’s Strategic Plan.  The Committee 
shall receive reports, have an opportunity to pose questions to staff, receive financial and audit information, and other critical 
information that would be helpful to board members in their oversight responsibilities. It is recommended the Committee be a 
Committee of the Whole. This means that all board members will be a member of the Program Review Committee; however, it 
is assumed that generally only 3 board members will be present at the Program Review Committee meetings. The Committee 
shall be formed in compliance with the Texas Open Meetings Act and notices for each meeting will be posted. Meetings will be 
open to the public. Staff is recommending that 2nd Vice-Chairperson Duncan-Hall serve as Chair of the Program Review 
Committee for 2019 and that Commissioner Apostolou serve as Committee Vice-Chairperson for 2019.  

Upon approval of this resolution, staff will schedule Program Review Committee meetings for all future board meeting dates as 
currently scheduled. quested additional time and information to enhance their knowledge in light of their oversight 
responsibilities. 

ITEM NO.4 - Page 5 of 6Attachment 1



February 21, 2019 
Page 5 of 5

 

Vice-Chairperson Bailey moved to Approve Resolution No. 02589: Authorizing the creation of a Program Review Committee 
and the Appointment of Members, 2nd Vice-Chairperson Duncan-Hall to serve as Chairperson of the Program Review 
Committee for 2019 and that Commissioner Apostolou serve as Committee Vice-Chairperson for 2019. Commissioner 
Carrington seconded the motion. The motion Passed (5-Ayes and 0-Nays). 

Chairperson Richie left the meeting at 2:20 pm.  Vice-Chairperson Bailey presided over the meeting.

THE BOARD DID NOT RECESS INTO EXECUTIVE SESSION. 

ADJOURNMENT 
Commissioner Apostolou moved to Adjourn the meeting. Commissioner Carrington seconded the motion. The motion 
Passed (4-Ayes and 0-Nays). 

The meeting adjourned at 2:35 pm. 

_______________________________ 
Michael G. Gerber, Secretary 

________________________________ 
Carl S. Richie, Jr., Chairperson 

ITEM NO.4 - Page 6 of 6Attachment 1



HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF AUSTIN 
BOARD ACTION REQUEST

RESOLUTION NO. 02592

EXECUTIVE
ITEM NO. 2.

MEETING DATE: March 14, 2019

STAFF CONTACT: Michael Gerber, President & CEO

ITEM TITLE: Presentation, Discussion, and Possible Action regarding Resolution No. 02592:
Approval to ratify all actions taken by the Board of Commissioners during FYE
2019, in order to resolve any irregularities which may have occurred regarding a
quorum or vote by the Commissioners as reflected within the approved minutes and
resolution

BUDGETED ITEM: N/A

TOTAL COST: N/A

ACTION

Upon past advisement of legal counsel, Resolution No. 02592 was drafted to ensure all actions taken by the 
Board during FYE 2019 be ratified, thus ensuring resolution of any irregularities during the voting process 
taken by the Commissioners. This is an action that will be presented for board action on an annual basis.

SUMMARY

Background:
This Resolution resolves any irregularities in the voting process found in the Board meeting minutes and/or 
resolutions, and all actions taken during the 2018-19 Fiscal Year by the Board of Commissioners are fully 
enforceable.

Process:
This Resolution resolves any irregularities in the voting process found in the Board meeting minutes and/or 
resolutions, and all actions taken during the 2018-19 Fiscal Year by the Board of Commissioners are fully 
enforceable.

Staff Recommendation:
Staff recommends Board approval of Resolution No. 02592 to ratify all actions taken by the Board of 
Commissioners during the 2018-19 Fiscal Year.

ITEM NO.5 - Page 1 of 2



RESOLUTION NO. 02592

Approval to ratify all actions taken by the Board of Directors during FYE 2019, in order to resolve
any irregularities which may have occurred regarding a quorum or vote by the Commissioners as
reflected within the approved minutes and resolutions

WHEREAS, in the event that there were any irregularities in any action or vote taken by HACA's Board of
Commissioners during the 2018-2019 Fiscal Year, the Housing Authority of the City of Austin desires  to 
ratify and affirm all of the actions and votes taken by the Board of Commissioners regardless of the
irregularity,  as each action and vote taken represents the true intention of a quorum or more of 
HACA's Board of Commissioners.

WHEREAS, the purpose of this resolution is to give full legal force and effect to each action or vote of the
Board of Commissioners taken during the 2018-19 Fiscal Year as if  each action was  taken  by a quorum  of 
the board without any irregularity, and therefore, every action  taken  by  the  Board of Commissioners during
the 2018-19 Fiscal Year is fully enforceable.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED , the Housing Authority of the City of Austin Board of
Commissioners hereby ratifies and affirms all actions and votes taken by the Board of Commissioners during
2018-2019 Fiscal Year.

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED  this 14th day of March 2019.

___________________________ ___________________________
Michael G. Gerber, Secretary Carl S. Richie, Jr., Chairperson

ITEM NO.5 - Page 2 of 2



HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF AUSTIN

REPORT

RENTAL ASSISTANCE DEMONSTRATION
ITEM NO. 3.

MEETING DATE: March 14, 2019

STAFF CONTACT: Ann Gass, Director of RAD

ITEM TITLE: Update on HACA's Rental Assistance Demonstration Program

BUDGETED ITEM: N/A

TOTAL COST: N/A

ACTION

No action is being requested.  Staff will provide an update to the Board regarding progress with HACA's
Rental Assistance Demonstration Program, ongoing construction and rehabilitation of units in HACA's public
housing portfolio, and implications for residents and the broader community.

ITEM NO.6 - Page 1 of 1



HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF AUSTIN

BOARD ACTION REQUEST

RESOLUTION NO. 02591

AUSTIN AFFORDABLE HOUSING CORPORATION
ITEM NO. 4.

MEETING DATE: March 14, 2019

STAFF CONTACT: Ron Kowal, Vice President of Housing Development/Asset Mgmt

ITEM TITLE: Presentation, Discussion, and Possible Action on Resolution No. 02591: Resolution
authorizing the Housing Authority of the City of Austin to take the following actions
with regard to The Oaks (the “Development”) in Austin, Texas: (A) acquire the site
of the Development; (B) lease the development site to the owner of the Development;
and (C) such other actions necessary or convenient to carry out this Resolution.

BUDGETED ITEM: N/A

TOTAL COST: N/A

ACTION

The Board is being asked to approve Resolution No. 02591 authorizing the Housing Authority of the City of
Austin to take actions with regard to The Oaks (the "Development") in Austin, Texas to acquire the site, lease
the site to the development and any other actions necessary to carry out the transaction.

SUMMARY

Background:
AAHC partnered with LDG Multifamily, LLC (LDG) on their first ever new construction multifamily
developments (Pointe at Ben White and Villages of Ben White) in 2014.  These two properties are tax credit
financed properties affordable to families with 60% AMFI. 

AAHC now has the opportunity to partner with LDG once again on a third phase adjacent to these projects.
The Oaks will consist of 96 units serving 50% of the tenants at 80% AMFI and below and the other 50% of
the tenants at self-imposed market rate levels. This housing model will allow those families that start with lower
incomes and subsequently achieve higher wages that exceed income limits at the first two Ben White projects,
to transition into The Oaks and remain near their families, schools and work.

Process:
The development will use a mixture of debt through Broadway Bank not to exceed $20,000,000 and equity
from LDG and AAHC to finance the development  with a project cost of approximately $22,000,000.  The
planned development will consist of 48 one bedroom and one bath units and 48 two bedroom and one bath
units.

ITEM NO.7 - Page 1 of 4



Staff Recommendation:
Board approval will allow AAHC to execute all necessary documents to acquire the site of the development,
lease the development site to the owner of the development and complete any such actions necessary or
convenient to carry out The Oaks transaction.

ITEM NO.7 - Page 2 of 4



RESOLUTION NO. 02591

Resolution authorizing the Housing Authority of the City of Austin to take the following actions with
regard to The Oaks (the “Development”) in Austin, Texas: (A) acquire the site of the Development;
(B) lease the development site to the owner of the Development; and (C) such other actions necessary
or convenient to carry out this Resolution

WHEREAS, the Housing Authority of the City of Austin (the “Authority”) plans to acquire the site on which
the Development will be located (the “Land”); and

WHEREAS, the Authority and LDG Oaks, LP (the “Partnership”) desire to enter into a ground lease (the
"Ground Lease") granting site control of the Land to the Partnership;

WHEREAS, in order to finance construction of the Development, the Partnership desires to enter into a loan
by Broadway National Bank (or an affiliate thereof) (the “Lender”) whereby the Partnership will borrow a sum
not to exceed $20,000,000 (the “Loan”);

WHEREAS, it is deemed necessary and advisable that this Resolution be adopted;

NOW, THEREFORE, in connection with the development of the Development, the Board of
Commissioners of the Housing Authority of the City of Austin hereby adopts the following resolutions:

BE IT RESOLVED , that any officer of the Authority (the “Executing Officer”), acting alone, is hereby
authorized to review, approve and execute all certificates, affidavits, agreements, documents and other writings,
including without limitation, the Ground Lease, any and all documents contemplated in connection with the
Authority’s acquisition of the Land, and any documents contemplated in connection with the Loans that
require the Authority’s signature in order to subordinate the Authority’s interest in the Ground Lease and/or for
purposes of securing Lender’s liens against the Land (collectively, the “Agreements”), the Executing Officer
shall deem to be necessary or desirable in the consummation of the transactions herein contemplated.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED , that all acts, transactions, or agreements undertaken prior hereto by the
Executing Officer of the Authority, in connection with the foregoing matters are hereby ratified and confirmed
as the valid actions of the Authority, effective as of the date such actions were taken; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED , that the Executing Officer is hereby authorized and directed for and on
behalf of, and as the act and deed of the Authority, to take such further action in the consummation of the
transactions herein contemplated and to do any and all other acts and things necessary or proper in furtherance
thereof, as the Executing Officer shall deem to be necessary or desirable, and all acts heretofore taken by the
designee of the Executing Officer to such end are hereby expressly ratified and confirmed as the acts and
deeds of the Authority.

This Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and upon its adoption.

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED  this 14th day of March, 2019.

___________________________ ___________________________

ITEM NO.7 - Page 3 of 3

Michael G. Gerber, Secretary Carl S. Richie, Jr., Chairperson



HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF AUSTIN

BOARD ACTION REQUEST

RESOLUTION NO. 02590

FINANCE
ITEM NO. 5.

MEETING DATE: March 14, 2019

STAFF CONTACT: Martha Ross, Vice President & Chief Financial Officer

ITEM TITLE: Presentation, Discussion, and Possible Action regarding the Approval of Resolution
No. 02590; Approving the Operating Budgets for the Fiscal Year April 1, 2019 to
March 31, 2020

BUDGETED ITEM: No
 

TOTAL COST: N/A

ACTION

Motion to Approve Resolution No. 02590; Approving Central Office, Low Income Housing, Assisted
Housing, Southwest Housing Compliance Corporation, Austin Affordable Housing Corporation, Austin
Pathways and Blueprint Housing Solutions Operating Budgets for the Fiscal Year April 1, 2019 to March 31,
2018. 

SUMMARY

Background:
The regulations of the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development require the Commissioners of
the Housing Authority of the City of Austin to approve the agency's Annual Operating Budget.  

Process:
Please see attached documents. 

Staff Recommendation:
Staff  recommends the Approval of the Central Office, Low Income Housing, Assisted Housing, Southwest
Housing Compliance Corporation, Austin Affordable Housing Corporation, Austin Pathways and Blueprint
Housing Solutions Operating Budgets for the Fiscal Year April 1, 2019 to March 31, 2020. 

ATTACHMENTS:

Fiscal Year 2020 Budget, Memo to Board
FY 20 Budget Workbook

ITEM NO.8 - Page 1 of 58



 

RESOLUTION NO. 02590

Approval of the Operating Budgets for the Fiscal Year April 1, 2019 to March 31, 2020
 
WHEREAS, the regulations of the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development require the
Commissioners of the Public Housing Agency to approve the Operating Budgets; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Commissioners of the Housing Authority of the City of Austin have reviewed the Operating
Budgets and do find:
 
1) That the proposed expenditures are necessary for the efficient and economical operation of the programs

for the purpose of serving low-income families; 
 
2) That the financial plan is reasonable in that: (a) It includes sources of funding adequate to cover all

proposed expenditures, and (b) It does not provide for use of Federal funding in excess of that payable
under the provisions of the Annual Contributions Contract;

 
3) That all proposed rental charges and expenditures will be consistent with the provisions of law and the

Annual Contributions Contract; and 
 
WHEREAS, The Board of Commissioners of the Housing Authority of the City of Austin hereby certify that the
Housing Authority of he City of Austin is in compliance with the Annual Contributions Contract which requires the
Housing Authority to, at least once per year, re-examine the income of families receiving assistance; and 
 
WHEREAS, The Board of Commissioners of the Housing Authority of the City of Austin hereby certify that the
Housing Authority of the City of Austin is in compliance with the requirement of the Annual Contributions
Contract, and that rents and utility allowance calculations have been or will be, adjusted in accordance with current
HUD requirements and regulations;
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED  that the Fiscal Year 2020 Operating Budgets, copies of such
budgets attached, are hereby approved by the Board of Commissioners of the Housing Authority of the City of
Austin.  
 
PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED  this 14th day of March, 2019. 
 
 
 

 
___________________________ ___________________________
Michael G. Gerber, Secretary Carl S. Richie, Jr., Chairperson

ITEM NO.8 - Page 2 of 58



Page 1 
 

Housing Authority of the City of Austin 
Established in 1937 

 
 

INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM 

 
DATE: March 14, 2019 

 

TO:  Board of Commissioners 

Michael Gerber, President& CEO 

 

FROM: Martha Ross, CFO 

  

SUBJECT: FY20 Operating Budget, Management Summary and Assumptions   
 

 
 Management Summary:  

  
The Operating Budget for the Fiscal Year (FY) ending March 31, 2020 is enclosed for your 
review. This consolidated Housing Authority of the City of Austin (HACA) budget, with tax 
credit properties has excess revenue (Provision for Reserve) for the twelve month operating cycle 
ending March 31, 2020 of $5.8 million (M).  The tax credit properties are shown from a 
stewardship perspective, as we have partial ownership.  On the balance sheet, HACA usually 
averages $14M - $16M in unrestricted cash for ongoing operations, future needs and reserves.  We 
budget to cover debt service (principal and interest loan payments on properties) as well as 
additions to replacement reserves, as agreed.  HACA’s financial position is balanced to cover 
strategic goals, expected operational goals, and agreements with HUD and our partners.  
 
Total Revenues decreased $.7M, less than one percent, compared to the prior budget.  Compared 
to last year’s budget, we have a contract budgeted at nine months in FY 20 versus twelve months 
in FY19.  (This also caps internal donation amounts to nine months.)  However, we have a Gain 
on Sale of scattered sites budgeted at approximately $2M.   Various other net offsets occurred 
within Total Revenues.  For example, we have some classification changes as properties continued 
to convert from Section 9, Low Income Public Housing to Section 8 – Project Based Rental 
Assistance (PBRA).  These PBRA Rental Assistance Demonstration (RAD) program conversions 
create a change in presentation where the Capital Fund Program (CFP) grant (in another report) 
previously received for Low Income Housing is now included in FY 20 Revenue with monthly 
payments from HUD.  Also changed compared to last year, is that a portion, rather than the full 
amount, of the Energy Performance Contract (EPC) revenue subsidy was grandfathered with 
PBRA – RAD properties.  The change in EPC subsidy was planned and expected in last year’s 
budget and this year’s budget; we paid off the EPC loan in 2018 when we converted these 
properties to PBRA – RAD.  
 
Revenues from the Housing Choice Voucher program are budgeted at about the same as last year.   
“Other Income” includes developer and other fees earned from Austin Affordable Housing 
Corporation (AAHC), budgeted at $.5M higher than last year.     
 
Please note that revenue line “HAP Reimbursements” is a pass-through and nets with the expense 
line “Housing Assistance Payments.”   

 

ITEM NO.8 - Page 3 of 58Attachment 1



Page 2 
 

 
 
Total Administrative expenses are $.5M, or 2 percent higher, compared to the FY19 Budget 
primarily due to (1) converting a few contractors into salaried positions to cover growth in our 
programs and grants, partly offset by temporarily using contractors, instead of vacant staff 
positions in FY 20 to invest in infrastructure, (2) including a few staff covered by grants in salaries 
this year, compared to prior year, as well as including grant revenue, (3) merit-based performance 
increases of three percent, and (4) relatively higher internal donations and management fees, 
primarily from Austin Affordable Housing Corporation (AAHC).  The performance incentive is 
not budgeted until mid-year budget amendments are considered.   

 
Total Maintenance is $.2M or four percent higher than prior year budget, primarily due to the 
costs of maintaining older properties (and associated overtime) and the cost of maintenance 
contracts, partly offset by newer renovated properties requiring less maintenance in FY20.  

 

Total General Expenses are expected to increase a little over $1M or 10 percent, primarily due to 
higher interest expense on additional RAD conversions, compared to the prior year and benefits.    
 
Total Other Routine Expenses are budgeted at $.7M or 11 percent higher than the prior year, in 
part due to pooling and presenting Tenant Services staff and associated revenue a different way 
this year, while continuing a prudent review of tenant and protective services, as we continue 
RAD conversion, including increased lighting and other security measures.  
 
Total Non-Routine Expenses eliminate a prior year carry-forward.  
 
Other Expenses / Donations are $1.9M or three percent lower than last year’s budget, primarily 
due to capping inter-company donations to various programs, in line with our current revenue 
budget.   

 
The assumptions for this Budget are included in Exhibit 1.  
 
 
  
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ITEM NO.8 - Page 4 of 58Attachment 1



Page 3 
 

 
 

Exhibit 1:  FY20 Budget Assumptions 
 

Overview 

This comprehensive annual budget includes all programs, Central Office Cost Center, all public 
housing properties, all Pathways Asset Management properties, Austin Affordable Housing 
Corporation (AAHC), tax credit properties, Southwest Housing Compliance Corporation (SHCC), 
Blueprint Consulting and Austin Pathways. Capital Fund and Grant budgets are not included in 
this budget presentation; while those budgets are not part of the Operating Budget, material capital 
expenditures are approved by the Board separately. As part of the budget process this year, each of 
our property sites and departments prepared a budget and this information was assembled into the 
agency-wide Operating Budget. This enabled us to make more accurate projections of our 
Operating Budget and ensure HACA’s compliance with HUD’s asset based funding model and 
third party agreements.  

 
HACA’s consolidated budget includes revenue and expenses from the tax credit partnerships, 
from a stewardship standpoint. The budget for revenue and expenses is based on an accrual 
approach that matches revenues and expenses for the 12 months shown.  In last year’s budget, 
cash expenditures (the principal portion of debt for the Energy Performance Contract and capital 
expenditures not covered by the Capital Fund Grants) were also referenced.  In this year’s budget, 
we reference Capital Expenditures for trash trucks, upgraded elevators, lobby and lighting updates 
and other.  

 
Fee Model  

These budgets are prepared using a fee-based Asset Management model. All programs are charged 
a fee to support the Central Office Cost Center (COCC) to support common central office 
functions. The Low Income Public Housing (LIPH) and Pathways Asset Management Inc. 
(PAMI) budgets are prepared using a site-based as well as an Asset Management Project (AMP) 
approach. Each site is charged fees as appropriate and as recommended by HUD. Expenditures to 
support resident programs and security are incorporated into the site-based budgets, or as part of 
the COCC.  Due to the program deficit, no management fee is charged to the Housing Choice 
Voucher program. SHCC contracts are charged management or donation fees up to the full 
available excess revenue. AAHC properties are similarly charged management fees on total 
revenue.  
 
Key Assumptions 

The FY20 budget reflects an average 3% annual performance evaluation merit increase.  Medical, 
dental and vision benefits paid by the employer are flat.  

 
Housing Operations (HOPS)   

During FY20, HACA will continue its conversion from the conventional LIPH program to the PBRA 
program through RAD.  The two remaining properties to convert are Chalmers and Lakeside.  RAD 
conversions will provide long-term financial stability for HACA while also improving the quality of 
HACA’s properties.  This combination helps HACA achieve its goal of providing quality housing with 
excellent services that bring new opportunities home to residents. 

 
Both types of HUD payments (Public Housing and PBRA) are based on a calendar year (CY), January to 
December.  Since HACA’s fiscal year (FY) ends March 31 and not December 31, we assumed that CY20 
payments would be the same as CY19 payments for purposes of this Budget (except for an OCAF –

ITEM NO.8 - Page 5 of 58Attachment 1



Page 4 
 

Operating Cost Adjustment Factor-- on PBRA payments on the HAP contract anniversary date, ranging from 
1.5% to 2%).  As referenced in prior years, RAD accounting impacts the way HACA budgets for the 
properties. There are new and different sources of revenue and expenses, unique challenges and additional 
transition expenses:   

 
1) CAPITAL: 

 
When the properties convert to RAD, the top line (revenue) subsidy from HUD is higher and includes 
capital, starting January of each year.  However, the bottom line (“provision for reserve”, a.k.a. net 
income, or excess revenues over expenses) for RAD properties will not show a material increase; 
“reserves for capital replacement” are shown as an added expense line item, and are meant to offset the 
capital revenue.    

 
In contrast, under Public Housing, the Capital Fund is an annual grant from HUD shown on the Balance 
Sheet, first as cash, then as an asset.  (Said another way, the annual Capital Fund Grant received from 
HUD is not part of this annual operating budget, which only shows twelve months of accrual-based 
revenues earned, matched to expenses incurred, to produce those same revenues).  Although the Capital 
Fund Grant cash expenditures are not in this annual operating budget, the Capital Fund Grant uses are 
individually approved by the Board for larger expenditures, and in total, are disclosed in monthly 
reporting to the Board.  

 
2) LUMP SUM: 
 

The monthly per unit Market Rent contract amount under PBRA is also different; it lacks itemization of 
discrete components and is shown as one lump sum for market rent, which includes HAP (Housing 
Assistance Payments).  For reference purposes, the HAP payments include operations, utilities (including 
grandfathered EPC), and capital, as referenced in item (1) above.   The combination of these transition 
items (adding capital to revenue and no itemization of details) results in more use of estimates to 
consistently align apples to apples in budget line items to the prior year.  Given that, HACA is taking a 
conservative approach in this budget for estimates, to gain history and trends for actual capital needs, and 
if additional reserves should be set aside or not, over time.  

 
Consistent with last year, the Low Income Housing department budget is divided into two separate budgets – 
one for the properties still in LIPH (the Low Rent Public Housing section of the budget) and one for the 
converted PBRA properties (the Pathways Asset Management section of the budget).  In FY20, only two 
properties are left to convert (Chalmers and Lakeside).  In order to facilitate year on year budget 
comparisons, the presentation of line items in FY19 was made similar to FY20, while not changing the total 
bottom line approved by the Board.    
 
As HACA’s portfolio continues to evolve with a RAD business model, we will continue to update our 
budget presentation so it is more like our annual audited statements, showing accrued revenues and expenses 
similar to those shown to third parties.     

 

ITEM NO.8 - Page 6 of 58Attachment 1



ITEM NO.8 - Page 7 of 58Attachment 2



ITEM NO.8 - Page 8 of 58Attachment 2



ITEM NO.8 - Page 9 of 58Attachment 2



ITEM NO.8 - Page 10 of 58Attachment 2



ITEM NO.8 - Page 11 of 58Attachment 2



ITEM NO.8 - Page 12 of 58Attachment 2



ITEM NO.8 - Page 13 of 58Attachment 2



ITEM NO.8 - Page 14 of 58Attachment 2



ITEM NO.8 - Page 15 of 58Attachment 2



ITEM NO.8 - Page 16 of 58Attachment 2



ITEM NO.8 - Page 17 of 58Attachment 2



ITEM NO.8 - Page 18 of 58Attachment 2



ITEM NO.8 - Page 19 of 58Attachment 2



ITEM NO.8 - Page 20 of 58Attachment 2



ITEM NO.8 - Page 21 of 58Attachment 2



ITEM NO.8 - Page 22 of 58Attachment 2



ITEM NO.8 - Page 23 of 58Attachment 2



ITEM NO.8 - Page 24 of 58Attachment 2



ITEM NO.8 - Page 25 of 58Attachment 2



ITEM NO.8 - Page 26 of 58Attachment 2



ITEM NO.8 - Page 27 of 58Attachment 2



ITEM NO.8 - Page 28 of 58Attachment 2



ITEM NO.8 - Page 29 of 58Attachment 2



ITEM NO.8 - Page 30 of 58Attachment 2



ITEM NO.8 - Page 31 of 58Attachment 2



ITEM NO.8 - Page 32 of 58Attachment 2



ITEM NO.8 - Page 33 of 58Attachment 2



ITEM NO.8 - Page 34 of 58Attachment 2



ITEM NO.8 - Page 35 of 58Attachment 2



ITEM NO.8 - Page 36 of 58Attachment 2



ITEM NO.8 - Page 37 of 58Attachment 2



ITEM NO.8 - Page 38 of 58Attachment 2



ITEM NO.8 - Page 39 of 58Attachment 2



ITEM NO.8 - Page 40 of 58Attachment 2



ITEM NO.8 - Page 41 of 58Attachment 2



ITEM NO.8 - Page 42 of 58Attachment 2



ITEM NO.8 - Page 43 of 58Attachment 2



ITEM NO.8 - Page 44 of 58Attachment 2



ITEM NO.8 - Page 45 of 58Attachment 2



ITEM NO.8 - Page 46 of 58Attachment 2



ITEM NO.8 - Page 47 of 58Attachment 2



ITEM NO.8 - Page 48 of 58Attachment 2



ITEM NO.8 - Page 49 of 58Attachment 2



ITEM NO.8 - Page 50 of 58Attachment 2



ITEM NO.8 - Page 51 of 58Attachment 2



ITEM NO.8 - Page 52 of 58Attachment 2



ITEM NO.8 - Page 53 of 58Attachment 2



ITEM NO.8 - Page 54 of 58Attachment 2



ITEM NO.8 - Page 55 of 58Attachment 2



ITEM NO.8 - Page 56 of 58Attachment 2



ITEM NO.8 - Page 57 of 58Attachment 2



ITEM NO.8 - Page 58 of 58Attachment 2


	Cover
	Meeting Agenda
	Program Review Committee
	20190221 HACA Minutes Summary
	Ratification - HACA
	RAD Update
	The Oaks
	Operating Budgets for the Fiscal Year April 1, 2019 to March 31, 2020




